# **PA WDB Quarterly Board Meeting**

Wednesday, February 5, 2020 10:12AM to 1:57PM

Pennsylvania School Boards Association

400 Bent Creek Boulevard, Mechanicsburg, Pennsylvania

### **Meeting Minutes**

#### Attendance

Members: Chair Jeffrey Brown, Secretary Teresa Miller, Secretary Pedro Rivera, Secretary Jerry Oleksiak, Representative Morgan Cephas, Henry Nicholas, John Sygielski, Brian Funkhouser, Chekemma Fulmore-Townsend, Jessica Trybus, Peter Klein, Jodi Pace, Denise Andahazy, Matt Yarnell, Commissioner Michael Pipe, Richard Bloomingdale, Executive Director Shannon Austin, Dionne Wallace-Oakley, Timothy James, James Harper, Jr. Idayat Adewunmi, Sarah Hollister, Gregg Riefenstahl, Marguerite Kline, Tim Bean, Brad Hollabaugh, Wendie DiMatteo Holsinger, Amy Schwenk for Secretary John Wetzel, Deputy Secretary Carol Kilko for Secretary Dennis Davin, Leroy Atwater for Bob McAuliffe, Executive Deputy Secretary Michael Hanna, Jr. for Secretary Russell Redding, David Miles for Secretary Robert Torres, Dawn Cowan for Representative Morgan Cephas, Tim Griffin for Frank Sirianni, Kendra Wiederhold for Representative Ryan Mackenzie, Megan Winters for Senator Lindsey Williams

Presenters: Deputy Secretary Allison Jones; David Miles, PA Department of Aging; Executive Deputy Secretary Michael Hanna, Jr., PA Department of Agriculture; Amy Schwenk, PA Department of Corrections; Secretary Pedro Rivera, PA Department of Education; Secretary Teresa Miller, PA Department of Human Services; Secretary Jerry Oleksiak PA Department of Labor and Industry; Executive Director Shannon Austin, Office of Vocational Rehabilitation; Executive Director James Martini, PA Workforce Development Board; Chair John "Ski" Sygielski, Industry Partnerships and Employer Engagement Committee; Chair Chekemma Fulmore-Townsend, Youth Committee; Chair Jeffrey Brown, Reentry Ad Hoc Committee; Chair Brian Funkhouser, Continuous Improvement Committee; Chair Matt Yarnell, Healthcare Ad Hoc Committee; Deputy Secretary Lisa Watson, Department of Human Services; Kristen Rotz, United Way of Pennsylvania; Maggie Livelsberger, United Way of Pennsylvania

**Staff:** Executive Director James Martini, Deputy Director Tracey Turner, Sara Gligora, Mary Hoskins, Michelle Lengel

## **Welcome and Introductions**

Chair Jeff Brown called the Quarterly Meeting to order at 10:12AM.

# **Chair's Updates**

Chair Brown opened the meeting by introducing the new board members. Mr. Brad Hollabaugh introduced himself as the president of his family farm corporation. They are located in Adams County and have been in business for over 60 years. Mr. Hollabaugh commented that he knew Secretary Redding and was happy to be there. Chair Brown thanked and welcomed him.

Chairman Brown then introduced Richard Bloomingdale and Mr. Bloomingdale noted that he is the President of the Pennsylvania AFL-CIO. He stated that their commitment to training workers is paramount to what they do in representing 700,000 workers in Pennsylvania.

Chairman Brown then introduced Shannon Austin who is the Executive Director with the Office of Vocational Rehabilitation. Executive Director Shannon noted that she had been with OVR for about 14 years and that she was excited to have a seat at the table. She emphasized that that she would mainly be listening but that if there was anywhere to contribute, that she would.

Chairman Brown then noted that another new Board member was Robert Harvie, Jr. who is a Bucks County Commissioner but that he would not be in attendance at the meeting.

Chairman Brown then sought a motion to approve the minutes from November 6<sup>th</sup>, 2020.

**MOTION**: Mr. Yarnell moved to approve the November 6<sup>th</sup> 2020 minutes. Mr. Nicholas seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Chairman Brown then asked Deputy Secretary Allison Jones to give an update on the Governor's budget. Deputy Secretary Jones noted that the Governor gave his address to the General Assembly the day prior and highlighted his budget priorities for the coming year. She stated that the Governor had a lot of investments in early childhood, early education, and child care space including Head Start, Pre-K Counts, full-day kindergarten, as well as investments in the public education system. The Governor was also seeking a new scholarship, the Nellie Bly Scholarship program, that will provide tuition assistance for lowincome and middle-class students attending PASHE universities. She remarked that they believe the program will make public higher education more affordable across the state as students graduate with an average of \$34,000 of student loan debt. They also believe that the program will reduce the monthly student loan payments so that recipients would be able to invest that money into independent lives and it will encourage tuition to stay down. Deputy Secretary Jones said that they are using it as a recruitment tool as they are asking student to make a commitment to stay in Pennsylvania for as long as they receive the tuition benefit in an effort to strengthen and build the workforce in the state. The Governor also proposed to continue funding for PA Smart which funds STEM, computer science education, apprenticeship and training opportunities, Next Gen Industry Partnerships, and career and technical education. Deputy Secretary Jones noted how the Governor increased funding for the WEDnet program which provides incumbent working training for employers. The Command Center studied a lot of barriers to employment over the past year and because of that, the Governor proposed a flexible pot of about \$12 million that DCED will make available to organization that are working directly address those barriers. Chairman Brown then thanked Deputy Secretary Jones and opened the floor up for questions. Dr. Sygielski asked if there was any consideration for community colleges for the scholarship. Deputy Secretary Jones said that they did consider community colleges but the Governor had a different proposal for community college students that didn't make it across the finish line. Also, the PA State System of Higher Education is going through system redesign and struggling with recruitment and retention so they felt like it was a strategic investment to support that work.

# **Agency Report- Department of Aging**

Chairman Brown then announced that they would begin department updates starting with David Miles from the Department of Aging.

Mr. Miles noted that he did not have much to add to what was provided in the briefing notes. He did state that the Older Americans Act, which houses the Senior Community Service Employment Program, was recently reauthorized and the program would continue for the foreseeable future.

### **Agency Report- Department of Agriculture**

Executive Deputy Secretary Mike Hanna then gave the PA Department of Agriculture's report. Executive Deputy Secretary Hanna highlighted that they were excited about continued funding for the Pennsylvania Farm Bill. He also noted that in January the Department of Agriculture approved the Ag and Youth grants which fund agriculture and youth organizations who help increase knowledge and awareness for agriculture in PA. They awarded \$500,000 for 55 projects across 25 counties. Executive Deputy Secretary Hanna also noted that the CFA (Commonwealth Financing Authority) approved \$5 million for the Dairy Investment Grants and they were able to fund 47 projects.

# **Agency Report- Department of Corrections**

Chief of Staff Amy Schwenk from the Department of Corrections highlighted that around 67 percent of individuals coming out of institutions were finding employment. She noted that they are also continuing to work closely with different areas to host employer roundtables to tout the benefits of hiring reentrants. Ms. Schwenk noted that they opened a correctional industries vehicle restoration plan in partnership with PennDot at SCI Forest and about a hundred inmates will be working there.

### **Agency Report- Department of Education**

Secretary Pedro River then provided the PA Department of Education's report of things he wanted to highlight beyond the briefing book. He noted that a great partnership is between L&I and PDE's division of postsecondary and adult education where they were trying to encourage the usage of the PA CareerLink system. Secretary Rivera also noted that they approved a new career and technical education center, Adams County CTC. He also stated that for their Perkins V State Plan, they were expecting the State Board to act on the final report in the March 2020 meeting. In another partnership with L&I and under the direction of the Governor, they awarded 92 additional Teacher in the Workplace grants. They were also getting ready to kick off their Career Ready PA Coalition.

# **Agency Report- Department of Human Services**

Secretary Teresa Miller of the Department of Human Services then presented that they had made a lot of changes to the E&T programs for TANF clients. Secretary Miller noted that they had brought together all of their workforce partners together in a meeting which included the local workforce boards, KEYS program represented, county assistance office, Work Ready partners, and the EARN partners. She also touched on the proposed federal SNAP rules and noted that of the three rules, two of the were still in the proposed form and she found them very concerning. One of the rules had already been finalized about able-bodied adults without dependents and will impact about 100,000 Pennsylvanians who historically, they were able to waive work requirements for. Under the new federal rule, they will no longer be able to do that. She noted that nearly 100,000 people may lose their benefits when the rule goes into effect in April. Secretary Miller remarked that Philadelphia itself has about 34,000 people impacted and they were doing everything they could to mitigate the impacts of the rule. She commented that one a happier note, they had just announced their Medicaid Work Supports program. She said that it was an exciting partnership working with Labor and Industry as well as managed care organizations as they were trying

to make better connections. At the beginning of the enrollment process, they are going to ask the applicant if they are interested in getting connected to Work Supports and from there someone would reach out to do a better job of connecting the population to work. Secretary Miller noted that in the Governor's budget, there was a proposal for a \$1.2 million state fund investment that combined with federal funds, is a two and a half million dollar investment in training for direct care workers. Chairman Brown then asked if the Attorney General was asking for an injunction to stop the implementation of the SNAP rules and Secretary Miller responded in the affirmative.

# **Agency Report- Department of Labor and Industry**

Secretary Jerry Oleksiak of the Department of Labor and Industry stated that the wanted to highlight that the Office of Vocational Rehabilitation was going to be working with CareerLink and the Centers for Independent Living to make sure they comply with ADA accessibility. Secretary Oleksiak noted the pages within the briefing book that contained information on the Youth Reentry Grant, which awarded \$5.9 million and and the Business Education Partnerships grants, which awarded \$2.4 million. Secretary Oleksiak stated that the PA CareerLink website was going through a redesign process. He stated that the previous Friday, the Independent Regulatory Review Commission, IRRC, passed the overtime regulations that the Governor and L&I worked diligently to get passed by a three to two vote. Secretary Oleksiak noted that that will raise the number of people eligible for overtime pay in Pennsylvania and said that the last time the regulations were changed, 70 percent of people were eligible but as of the meeting, only 6 percent were eligible for overtime pay and the new regulations increased the salary level. He then highlighted that 80-plus thousand Pennsylvanians will be able to earn overtime that could not before. Secretary Oleksiak stated that the regulations were then in the Attorney General's office and then the Senate and the House. He also talked about how the Office of Vocational Rehabilitation had to close their order of selection and stop taking new customers but as of February 1st, they were able to reopen the order of selection on a rolling basis. Secretary Oleksiak thanked the staff at OVR, the Governor's office, budget office, and policy office who worked to get them to that point.

Chairman Brown then asked if there was a chance that the overtime rules wouldn't get approved when they went to the House and Senate. Secretary Oleksiak responded that that the House and Senate would have to agree on a concurrent resolution saying that they didn't want the rules but that the Governor could veto it. Ms. Andahazy asked when that might happen. Secretary Oleksiak responded that there are time limits. The Attorney General's office would have them for 30 days and then the House and Senate would have either 10 session days or 30 calendar days, whichever is longer, to do what they want to do with them and then it will go to the Governor's Office. Secretary Oleksiak said that they should be out in 2021 and that it would have to be published in the Pennsylvania Bulletin so that employers and employees affected would have the information available.

### **Agency Report- Office of Vocational Rehabilitation**

Shannon Austin, Executive Director of the Office of Vocational Rehabilitation then presented her report. She noted that they were excited about working with the PA CareerLink to do the ADA accessibility. They would be visiting their physical locations, making sure that the websites are accessible. Mr. Ralph Roach then noted that they would be doing joint training with the Bureau of Workforce Development and with Workforce Board members, CareerLink site administrators, and WIOA staff to be able to split the trainings. Ms. Austin remarked that a lot of the workforce at the CareerLink already had accessibility but they want to make sure that staff are up to speed with the assistive technology that is within the system. She stated

that they were looking at the order of selection list weekly to assess and see how they can serve individuals. They also have a few openings on the Pennsylvania Rehab Council and announced that if anyone from the PA Workforce Development Board was interested in joining to let her know. They also rolled out a disability, equity and inclusion initiative at OVR to help staff increase competency areas in working with diverse populations and underserved populations.

Chairman Brown noted for the new Board members that a large percentage of the state government leadership is represented on the Board and that they do updates to encourage interagency cooperation.

## **Committee Update- Industry Partnerships and Employer Engagement**

He remarked that the Board has also been divided into different committees that focus on different challenges in the state. Chairman Brown then asked Dr. Sygielski, the chair of the Industry Partnership and Employer Engagement Committee to give that committee's report.

Dr. Sygielski stated that the Next Generation Industry Partnership Task Force is now fully operational and noted that it is a mobile and desktop site and that the PA WDB has received a lot of positive comments about it. Dr. Sygielski remarked that they would be hosting a summit for Next Generation Industry Partnerships, likely in the spring, and asked that if anyone had topic ideas then to share them with the Board staff. The committee has also been encouraging the use of the one-stop centers and found that many employers don't know about the PA CareerLink and one-stop centers. Dr. Sygielski remarked that he had visited the CareerLink in Harrisburg and that he was very impressed and there were employees there that he would like to hire himself. He remarked that he hopes other Board members would visit PA CareerLink because it helped inform the work that the Board does.

#### **Committee Update- Youth**

Chairman Brown then asked the chair of the Youth Committee, Chekemma Fulmore-Townsend to present. Ms. Fulmore-Townsend remarked that the Youth Committee was gaining steam and that their primary focus was to dive deeper into the WIOA Combined Plan. She commented that they see greatest opportunity in around aligning definition around best practices because different agencies are investing in young people but people define it differently so it is difficult to compare. They had also looked at how to align strategies to increased pre-apprenticeship and apprenticeship participation. They were going to meet after the quarterly Board meeting to begin to prioritize their actions and continue to move forward in strengthening the services to youth. Chairman Brown then thanked Ms. Fulmore Townsend for her report and if the new Board members were interested in joining a specific committee to let James Martini know.

### **Committee Update- Reentry Ad Hoc**

Chairman Brown then gave the report for the Reentry Ad Hoc Committee and noted that the session that was held in Philadelphia was very well attended and they got a lot of feedback from the survey. He noted that their objective is to figure out how to accelerate returning citizens getting opportunities and being successful. They also engaged a research firm that went through contracting and asked when they would be getting the first stage report. Mr. Martini noted that they do have the first stage report and were moving into the second stage of research. Chairman Brown noted that they were planning a roundtable for Bucks County.

#### **Committee Update- Career Pathways and Apprenticeship**

Mr. Martini then gave the report for the Career Pathways and Apprenticeship Committee as he noted that Ms. Campion was unable to be there. He remarked that they had a ongoing research project and that they would use the information to inform a broader survey that goes out to a lot of workforce partners, local boards, and PA CareerLink to get a feel of where local career pathways program and system development as at. He noted that the research would be used to inform an RFP later in the year about building out career pathways systems and noted that career pathway program was used to talking about mapping or sequencing of jobs along the career ladder. He remarked that system development ultimately comes down to a fully functioning workforce development system and meeting people where they were at. It includes providing supportive services to help them address obstacles or barriers that are getting in the way of them being employed. Mr. Martini concluded with mentioning that for the RFP, they were looking to take some of their discretionary funding and using it to build out awards to group or areas that have innovative ideas of developing system improvements that allow the state to meet the needs of the customers in a more effective and efficient manner.

Ms. Trybus asked if there was overlap with the Youth Committee work when talking about career pathways. Mr. Martini said yes and Ms. Trybus asked if it was with coordinating. Mr. Martini responded that there have been efforts to make sure that the committees were connected and coordinated and noted that there has been talk over the years of combining them. He then remarked that they do want to keep them as distinct entities because big pieces sometimes get left out of the career pathways conversation looks like for workers that are older than youth. He noted that there are a number of different populations outlined in the WIOA law that are identified as a priority, whether it be homemakers, displaced workers, or older Pennsylvanians that are looking to do something different in the job market. Ms. DiMatteo-Holsinger then asked James what the RFP was specifically. Mr. Martini responded that the committee was figuring out what they wanted it to look like but that the goal was to have a competitive award for innovative ways to build out the pathways system. Ms. DiMatteo-Holsinger asked if it was a grant opportunity and Mr. Martini responded that it will be a grant opportunity for people to competitively bid on and noted that barriers identified in the Governor's Keystone Economic Development and Workforce Command Center would going to feed in the system developed. Ms. DiMatteo-Holsinger thanked Mr. Martini and noted that she was just trying to follow the direction.

### **Committee Update- Continuous Improvement**

Brian Funkhouser, chair of the Continuous Improvement Committee, noted that that committee was kind of a catch-all. He remarked that they continue to monitor the dashboards and are looking to develop new metrics to measure within. A new initiative for the committee is developing a quarterly newsletter and the committee will be providing recommendations and suggestions. The committee has also been talking about barrier identification as they are looking at what other states are doing and bringing it to the Board. Mr. Funkhouser also noted that they also had a discussion about branding across the state.

Chairman Brown thanked Mr. Funkhouser for the presentation and noted that the next meeting would have a presentation on the upgraded website but Chairman Brown asked it the Continuous Improvement committee could look at it first. Mr. Martini responded that they could.

# **Committee Update- Healthcare Workforce Ad Hoc**

Matt Yarnell, chair of the Healthcare Workforce Ad Hoc Committee noted that in the last session, the board spent significant time on the work of the committee. The plan was to get the draft declaration in front of the Board by the May 5<sup>th</sup> meeting and ask the group to take a vote on it. He noted that in the last meeting the group had dug into discussing caregiving and have looked at jobs that have been written out of labor rules. He remarked that the they were trying to put a very bold statement out to the Governor, the Legislature, and directly to Pennsylvanians noting that they rules have be written to get workers a living wage to be celebrated for the important work they do in the community and beyond. He concluded that once they have a crisis statement, and thanked James Martini and Tracey Turner, that they would like to think of recommendations and solutions to offer.

Chair Brown then noted to the committee chairs that he saw the purpose of the committees to craft what they learn into a recommendation to the Governor. He stated that he would like to get recommendations to the Board for review, and then if the Board approves, to pass along to Deputy Secretary Allison Jones to discuss with the Governor. He said that he hoped to see some solid recommendations in the next two meetings.

# **DHS Workforce Development Initiatives**

Chairman Brown then welcomed Deputy Secretary Lisa Watson of the Department of Human Services to present on the employment and training redesign the Department had been working on for two plus years. Deputy Secretary Watson noted for the last two plus years, they had been looking at a lot of data and they found that participant feedback that they received about their training programs did really shed light on areas that might not have doing as well. They also had the opportunity a few years ago to pull together about 300 individuals that were receiving services and participating in the employment and training programs to ask what they were going through and if the services were useful to them. She stated that they heard some things that had already heard before but one of the things that struck them the most was that people were saying that they felt as though they weren't being treated as individuals which was disheartening for them. She noted that not everyone felt that why but for the ones that felt that way, they felt like DHS was just checking off boxes. Another piece of feedback that they got was that they needed more support than what was being provided. They have also found that the Work First philosophy has not been as effective for them as they are trying to move families into sustainable wages. She stated that they needed to take a step back and look not only at challenges and barriers, but education levels to ensure that they properly equipping individuals to be successful. The third challenge for them was Extended TANF which is for anybody that receives TANF for 1,830 days or more and the population tends to have more barriers and challenges. The requirements for the state at the moment are that the ETANF recipients cannot be more than 20 percent of the TANF population or the state will have to fund all of the services that are related to ETANF. They therefore needed to figure out with the redesign if they were providing enough services to that population. They are also working with their contracted partners like the workforce boards, EARNs, KEYS, etc. to get more information. Some of the comments received from them were that they didn't have enough opportunity to work with participants fully. Partners also noted that there was some administrative burden relating to time spent chasing paystubs, which identifies or provides verification of jobs that individuals were able to find.

Deputy Secretary Watson noted that they worked with Mathematica who had done multiple studies on the topic. They ultimately recommended using a coaching model. They see the coaching model as the system being an advocate for the client and saying, "this is what we believe you can do" and that they would be there to champion the journey for them. Deputy Secretary Watson remarked that the way they had set up grant agreements wasn't working anymore and needed to change. She noted that the changes would become effective July 1, 2020 and they were looking at providing more flexibility within the programs. They have also been looking at intensive case management and coaching models to be able to connect clients with other services and have been really focusing on career pathways for their clients. They are also looking at barrier remediation and bringing in counseling from a licensed professional. She stated that it would not be constant therapy sessions but rather someone that could be onsite to add more insight to discussions on their lives, plans, and career goals. Deputy Secretary Watson remarked that they had been talking about credentialing via education and training activities. They were talking about changing their retention period from six months to twelve months to allow continued work with the clients. Another project that they had been working on to complement the system is the work expense deduction which will allow an individual to receive a standard deduction when they start working that will reduce their accountable income which would allow them to receive services for a longer period of time. She noted that it would help the benefits cliff that Secretary Miller would talk about in her presentation. Deputy Secretary Watson then noted that they want to have a robust assessment so they can use it in the development of an individualized employment plan. They are also allowing up to three credentials for participants in case a credential doesn't stick for an individual. They are looking for higher wage placements of looking at \$2 above the minimum wage. Deputy Secretary Watson then referenced the workforce systems meeting where they had brought together all of their partners in one room and noted how they received great feedback. She remarked that they were working on allocations their workforce partners and their new referral system would be starting July 1st. Chairman Brown then asked if anyone had questions.

Ms. DiMatteo-Holsinger said that she thought the changes were great. She asked how funding and staffing was looking with the added element of intensified counseling and case management. Deputy Secretary Watson clarified that her questions was asking about the licensed counselor. Ms. DiMatteo-Holsinger responded that it was. Deputy Secretary Watson answered that they believe that the funding being reflected in the allocations will cover it. They also hope that there will be partnerships with organizations that already have licensed professionals on staff and that they are not looking to create a brand new system of service when they know those services are already there. They are looking to figure out how to bring that person onsite so that is available to the individuals. Ms. DiMatteo-Holsinger asked if they had a sense of the caseload. Deputy Secretary Watson responded that they didn't have a sense of the caseload for a particular counselor at the time. Sarah Hollister asked if Deputy Secretary Watson could give some more concrete examples of barrier remediation. Deputy Secretary Watson gave an example of if they had a client that didn't appear to be interested in working, but as an assessment would be completed, it would come to be known that they had a child that was having issues in school which their attention is focused on. She mentioned that they would working with the client to develop a plan that would allow them to address what they needed for their child. The goal would be to connect them with local resources that would provide additional services. Ms. Hollister asked to clarify if it would be taking out the necessity to work and allowing them time to work on those other things. Deputy Secretary Watson said that it is delaying it because they ultimately want the clients to still work but it is giving them time to work through those issues. She noted that the federal government imposed on the state of a 50 percent (for the most part) work participation rate. She then noted that the federal government allow for credits that can be given for the decline in caseload and based on the credits the state has compared to the work participation rate, the state had a zero work participation rate at the time of the meeting.

Chairman Brown then remarked that he was an incredibly thoughtful plan. He asked what the state human services was doing to encourage the local workforce boards to implement it and monitor how well they were doing, as well if there was a penalty or a reward. Deputy Secretary Watson remarked that part of the process has been getting the buy-in from their workforce partners. She noted that for actual incentives, it is looped into how they are executing the grant agreements and that they do have performance payments that are tied to specific benchmarks. They also removed some of the penalties they had if they didn't make sense. Matt Yarnell then asked if the training funds were a part of the thinking or support at DHS and if not, he thought that it would be a good idea to get in touch with them as they have done a lot of barrier work. Deputy Secretary Watson replied that she was not sure if they were specifically included but that if they were not, she would be interested in setting something up because they need all of the partners to help. Shannon Austin then asked where MAWD (Medical Assistance for Workers with Disabilities) fit into the equation when people are concerned about health care coverage and making it affordable as they transition out of the system. Deputy Secretary Watson responded that individuals that are on the MAWD program can still participate in DHS' employment and training programs. It depends on the extent of their disability as they do have some exemptions. She noted that they would work with OVR to figure out how to be able to get them the type of employment that they need to have and they would also loop in the Office of Development Programs. Ms. Austin followed up that they tend to find that there is often a lack of connection. She asked if that would be part of the individualized plans to help transitions. Deputy Secretary Watson responded that there is lack of communication amongst staff to communicate with clients so that they know all of the services that exist. They are building that as a training component so that DHS' employees know what is out there. Deputy Secretary Watson then added that the second part of what Ms. Austin was describing ties into the larger discussion of individuals fully understanding what it means to go to work. She noted that it is an education component and ties into the benefits cliff as people need to understand that a growing income would replace SNAP benefits.

Chairman Brown then welcomed Secretary Teresa Miller to talk about the benefits cliff. Secretary Miller noted that it is more complicated than anyone could imagine in terms of solving it. She remarked that for Deputy Secretary Watson's presentation, in the Governor's new budget, there was an additional \$14.8 million for the redesign from federal dollars. There will be an additional \$15 million into the programs to make all of the changes and to do a better job of serving individuals.

Secretary Miller commented that they had spent about a year studying the benefits cliff and that they wanted to understand how the benefits cliff intersects with a living wage. She commented that the ALICE presentation would put it into perspective and that the living wage is just a break-even point where people are barely getting by. She noted that the benefit that they administer that has a significant cliff is child care benefits, in comparison to SNAP where the benefits taper off as a person's income goes up. Secretary Miller remarked that the bigger issue is that they have a lot of working people on public assistance working full-time and still needing all of the benefits and still not getting to the break-even point. There is also a stagnation point for families before they even have to worry about a child care cliff. Secretary Miller than summarized the benefits that DHS administers as what would be included in the presentation. It includes TANF (Temporary Assistance to Needy Families) which is really the only cash assistance benefit and for a family of three, a mom and two kids, is \$400 a month and hasn't gone up since 1990. The Supplemental Nutrition Assistance benefit, SNAP, is essentially food stamps and for a family of two, is \$243 which averages to \$4 per person per day. Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program, LIHEAP, helps people

pay utilities in the wintertime and the benefit for a season is a couple hundred dollars on average. Child Care Works is a major benefit as the more children someone has, the more significant the benefit. MAGI Medicaid is working age adults on Medicaid and there is also the Children's Health Insurance Program, CHIP. Secretary Miller then noted that benefit eligibility and values or how much benefit someone or a family is getting is dependent on the household demographic and child care needs. She remarked that for purposes of the slideshow, they used MIT's living wage calculator as a starting point and then made adjustment to child care and medical cost where there is Pennsylvania specific information. Secretary Miller then began referencing her visual presentation as she talked about different benefit scenarios based on family composition. She noted that for one adult there is really no cliff and that is because they don't have kids but that there was a small period of stagnation where SNAP benefits were going away and they were transitioning from Medicaid to exchange coverage. She noted that the break-even point was just over \$13 an hour. She then showed a graph for one adult and one child where the adult is working full-time and the child is in a Star 1 facility. Secretary Miller then noted that facilities in PA are rated anywhere from 1 to 4 stars where 4 stars have gone above and beyond and 1 stars probably aren't the greatest facility. She then noted that the family fell off the cliff between 17 and 19 dollars an hour and that is where families reach the 235 percent of the federal poverty level. The family would be paying \$76 dollars a week with subsidies but \$170 to \$252 a week without subsidies. Secretary Miller remarked that there was a legislative report form 2015 that highlighted that the child care cliff is an issue across the country. However, PA does do a decent job at transitioning people when compared to other states as PA is one of sixteen states that has tiered eligibility. It is when people are eligible at 200 percent of the federal poverty level but they don't lose eligibility until they get to 235 percent. PA also guarantees child care subsidy access to people within TANF to try to support that transition into work. They also have a level fixed dollar amount copayment that is based on family size and income. Secretary Miller stated that because of all of the features, she thinks that means Pennsylvania is probably a little more friendly in terms of helping people transition through the cliff. DHS also doesn't know how many people the cliff is impacting but they do have data showing that only about 9 percent of the Child Care Works families fall between the 200 percent and 235 percent of federal poverty. They also know that the average family leaves the program before they get to 200 percent of the federal poverty level. They are interested in understanding better whether there are families before the 200 percent that might be holding back in increasing their income because they don't know when the cliff is coming. They are looking at doing a survey of families that they serve and have served to try to understand how the cliff may or may not have impacted them. Secretary Miller noted that one of the things to think about is any expansion in terms of the threshold that would directly impact the wait list. She also remarked that a bigger issue is that there is a family working full-time with all of the benefits and still not able to get to the break-even point. She noted that the information makes the case for increasing the minimum wage because in all scenarios, the family is better off at \$12 an hour than they are at \$7.25. The department is also trying to figure out what to do with the period of stagnation and Secretary Miller believes that ties in with doing a better job of not just getting people into a job but to work with them so they can get to a place where they can make ends meet. They are going to build in incentives to their program so that vendors are incentivized to help somebody get a credential or get them into the KEYS program. She remarked that they want to get people to a place where they can support themselves and their families that they have to get them into some kind of education or training. Secretary Miller and Secretary Rivera have been working closely together on a parent pathways model. She mentioned Misericordia University's program where they support single moms and their children, up to three kids, and wrap every support around them to make sure they are

successful in getting their four-year degree. T]he program is ending the cycle of poverty for those families. She also mentioned that they would be having a procurement go out to expand those models and that she hoped the model expanded beyond the four year degrees as well. She also mentioned again that in the Governor's budget there was a proposal for work expense deduction, which is a \$23.4 million item that would ease the transition for people leaving TANF and stay in connection with their supports for a longer period of time. They also have another proposal to address the cliff and it is restructuring the child care copayments and smoothing out the transition as an individual's income is going up. Secretary Miller mentioned situations where employers have told her that they wanted to give an employee a raise but they turned it down because they were afraid of falling off the cliff. From that, she believes that financial education is part of the solution so people know where they are at. CAO workers have also said that individuals are also afraid of losing their benefits because losing that can feel like a cliff to them. She remarked that if someone has never had to budget before, because of benefits being given in silos, it can be difficult. With the redesign they would be in a better position to educate people. One of the things they have talked about in partnership with the United Way was creating a tool that people could use to find when they would be impacted by cliffs.

Denise Andahazy noted that she found the explanation of the cliff versus the period of stagnation very helpful. She remarked that she thought that their point on education was very important as well because they have a partial seasonal workforce in rural Northeast PA. One of the things they did to try to help employees was to allow more part-time work opportunities and communicated with posters that said to talk to them if they were concerned about their hours. From that experience, Ms. Andahazy believes a tool would be very helpful. Secretary Miller thanked her. Ms. DiMatteo-Holsinger added that she thinks there is complexity added to the whole model in the sense of looking at minimum wage and looking at leaner industries like food and grocery industries that work on very lean margins. The impact of going to \$12 would be significant in food costs and noted the increase was going to have to come from somewhere. Ms. DiMatteo-Holsinger added that she was trying to say it is complex and that if consumer goods go up and that \$242 in food stamps wouldn't get as much because food prices would have gone up 20 percent to accommodate. She remarked that she wasn't advocating for no increases in the minimum wage but that she was trying to share complexities as industries are looked at.

Ms. Dionne Wallace Oakley noted that she had another comment from an employer perspective and noted that they don't have a lot of employees are making below the minimum wage but they have found that a lot of people are embarrassed or don't want to share with the employer what the circumstances are and so they encourage people to utilize resources they have on financial planning perspective. Ms. Oakley Wallace then asked to have an offline conversation with Secretary Miller to make sure she could be better educated on the topic. Mr. Hollabaugh then asked for clarification if the tables in the presentation were based on a single earner of multiple earners. Secretary Miller noted the ones in her presentation were just one adult but they had looked at households with two adults/earners. Mr. Yarnell noted that it would be helpful to see a few more models. He then asked how many of the jobs that workers are in have some benefits that are covering subsidized jobs such as health and child care. Mr. Yarnell commented that the state can't education itself out of a crisis around people who do direct care, and the answer is always to give people more skills and pay them a wage that is better.

Timothy James noted that he thought the graphs and charts were informative and that from growing up in a neighborhood where most families were below the poverty line, the cliff is a real fear. He noted that the cliff is almost exclusively based on Child Care Works running out because looking at the chart, the rest

of the benefits taper off. Secretary Miller reaffirmed that with most other benefits , they taper off but with child care, once a family hits the 235 they are done and fall of that cliff. Mr. James asked if the rest of households with children follow that similar pattern. Secretary Miller responded that they did and the more children a person has, the steeper the cliff. Mr. James asked if an increase or other subsidies to address the child care issue would be a big benefit. Secretary Miller responded that that PA's program is fairly good in terms of eligibility threshold and that in other states, the cliff will be further to the left. She also remarked that if there was a bunch of money to throw at it, the cliff could be moved over theoretically past the zero line but then they also have to think about the fact that there is a wait list for Child Care Works. She noted that if the line was moved over, they would not be serving people on the wait list who are making less income.

Chairman Brown remarked that her presentation didn't have benefits that the Department of Human Services doesn't administer. He then noted that he had heard repeatedly from disabled individuals that there is a cliff where they might lose their classification and stated that it might be nice to see other benefits. Secretary Miller responded that he may be referring to the MAWD program where people with disabilities are working and that she was less familiar with that issue but there is an issue there. Ralph Roach responded that a person who is nonblind and a Social Security beneficiary is going to get about \$10,000 a year cash on that benefit, and that when they start working and are competitively employed, they are on a time clock of about nine months to demonstrate that they will be successful, retain their job and then the cash benefit tapers down. A person who is blind, low vision gets about \$15,000 a year. They also face a benefits cliff in terms of the cash they receive as a disabled person who receives Social Security. Chairman Brown then asked about health insurance if they are disabled and on Medicaid. Mr. Roach responded that if they are on Medicaid there is an ability to retain that under the Work Incentives Improvement Act and if they end up getting employer-based health care and if their situation changes in the future, should they lose employment, there is a rapid reinstatement of that benefit. Mr. Miles remarked that there is a federal program for Social Security recipients where they can sit down with somebody and talk about what is going to happen at a certain point and will talk to individuals about rapid reinstatement in case they lose their job.

Chairman Brown then thanked Secretary Miller for the presentation.

United Way Asset Limited, Income Constrained, Employed (ALICE) Initiative

Ms. Rotz began her presentation by thanking the PA WDB for having them. She remarked that their contribution to the work started publicly in June when they launched the ALICE report in Pennsylvania. They then showed a video. Ms. Rotz noted that there were a couple of important themes coming together from all of the conversations happening. The first is that the federal poverty level is a completely inaccurate measure of what it takes to survive in this economy as it was a creation of the 1960s and people spent more on food and less on housing. Ms. Rotz noted that they have data specific to every county in Pennsylvania. She then commented that to be considered ALICE, an individual has to be employed and earning about the federal poverty level but they are not yet earning enough to meet their basic needs. They have a second tier to their budget which is called the sustainability budget which is more sustainable in the modern economy but it just pays for basic needs and if something unexpected occurs the family will not be able to cope. When speaking of ALICE, it is important to note that it is essential to the state's economy as it is direct care workers, bank tellers, grocery store workers. Ms. Rotz then remarked that she is the President of United Way of Pennsylvania. United Way of Pennsylvania is a statewide membership

organization and they have 52 local United Ways raising \$175 million on an annual basis which gets invested into health and human services programs. A summary of key level data shows that 37 percent of the population is financially struggling, 24 percent of that is ALICE and 13 percent are people that live in poverty. The bottom line is the increase in the cost of household essential has been increasing for the last ten years at a far greater rate than the average income of PA households is increasing. Ms. Livelsberger remarked that ALICE is in every single county in PA and they have been about to break it down to zip code, municipality, census place and that 75 percent of PA's municipalities have more than 30 percent of households living at or below the ALICE threshold. Ms. Rotz then referred to a booklet that contained the top 20 occupations in PA in terms of volume of people working in them, and only 3 of the top 20 occupations are paying a wage which allows a household to achieve an ALICE survival budget. For a family of four, it would take a combined household income of \$30 an hour to meet basic needs and for a single individual, it takes an hourly income of about \$10.38. Many of the local United Ways have been involved in conversations with employers who are trying to achieve their workforce objectives and make sure they have a qualified workforce who sticks with them in the long run. Ms. Livelsberger then went over a graph of a survival budget and what all of the costs associated are like housing, child care, health care, transportation, and a basic phone plan, etc. She pointed out that the budget does not include savings or student loans. To reach middle class status, it is roughly \$35,000 income for a single adult and \$99,000 for a family of four and the budget allows for a little more than a basic standard of life like a higher quality child care program. When the stability budget is broken down a single adult needs to make roughly \$17.50 and wages need to be \$50 an hour for a family of four and the stability budget allows for 10 percent cost savings category but still does not allow for student loans and is still conservative. Ms. Livelsberger noted that a county breakdown is available at their website uwp.org/alice. They also have information about employment and budget breakdowns.

Ms. Rotz noted that the break-even points in the DHS analysis and the ALICE survival budget were very close to each other. She remarked that for families that are going through the stagnation, it feels like a long period because they might be working more or have a pay raising but they were not feeling more financially secure. They would also like to develop a benefit calculator in partnership with the Department of Human in order to help people and educate them about what is going on. United Way sees its role as sitting at the intersection of government and nonprofit sector and business in the space and be able to leverage their expertise to be a part of the solution. Ms. Livelsberger then talked about the Employee Resource Network that the Pocono Mountains United Way was working on that was originally developed in Michigan. A Employee Resource Network is being developed in the Pocono Mountains United Way because they had business cohorts whose HR departments didn't have enough time to handle the transportation or child care issues. From that, they brought businesses together as a cohort to buy time for a success coach. The success coach would go into the employers every week and walk the floors and talk to the employees and helping them through whatever issues they might be experiencing. They also found that some Employee Resource Networks outside of PA were going a step beyond and bringing child care facilities to a technology park or bringing in a nurse practitioner twice a month to see employee's families because they were unable to access health care. Ms. Rotz ended the presentation by noting that 211 is a resource available throughout the state where employees can reach out for help. Deputy Secretary Carol Kilko asked if the examples of the resource networks were happening in Pennsylvania. Ms. Livelsberger noted that they were not yet happening in PA yet as they were hoping to get a pilot running in the Poconos region in 2020. Deputy Secretary Kilko then remarked that there were already networks with Industry Partnerships going on across the state so that would possibly be an opportunity for

collaborative work as they have already identified a lot the issues and that she would like to talk to them about it. Ms. Livelsberger agreed. Ms. Adewunmi thanked them for the presentation and noted she would like to get in touch with the United Way in Philly. Chairman Brown said he would connect them. Ms. Adewunmi then asked if there was a community practice to develop the networks. Ms. Rotz responded that they were providing support but that they were in an incubation period for a number of people running highly localized initiatives and that they were watching some closely for potential scale on a regional or statewide level. She noted that the United Way in Philadelphia was aware of ALICE and was specifically focused on poverty issues but that they were also trying to figure out ways to serve the ALICE population. Mr. Bloomingdale asked if any of the budgets included retirement savings. Ms. Rotz responded that it didn't.

Lunch Break

### Agency Report-Department of Community and Economic Development

Chairman Brown invited Deputy Secretary Kilko to give the update for the Department of Community and Economic Development. Deputy Secretary Kilko noted that they were working very closely with the Department of Labor and Industry on Industry Partnerships and remarked that they, especially Gwen Ross, provided technical support for 13 different partnerships. DCED also continues to provide for their preapprentice and apprenticeship grant program where the provide \$3,000 for five apprentices per company. They also have Manufacturing Training to Career where they work with organizations that provide shortterm training programs that are focused on those with barriers. They continue to work with WEDnet which is their incumbent work program and with the proposed budget there will be a total of \$10 million in the program. She then asked Zach Reber, the Executive Director of the Command Center give a report. Mr. Reber noted that the Command Center had to continued to meet weekly, with a few exceptions, with representation from Labor and Industry, DCED, Department of Human Services, Department of Agriculture, Department of Corrections, Department of State, and Department of Transportation. The Pennsylvania Chamber of Business and Industry, AFL-CIO, Team Pennsylvania, and the Auditor General are also involved. Mr. Reber remarked that the first year of the Command Center was an opportunity for everyone around the table to learn about current workforce efforts so that they can better address the needs of Pennsylvania's workforce and the structural barriers that limit opportunities. Over the last year, they hosted four regional meetings where they heard from job seekers, employers, and workforce professionals about issues specific to their regions. Due to the Executive Order signed by Governor Wolf in February 2019, all of the information that they received over the past year was compiled into their first report which was comprised of 42 recommendations. The report also highlighted best practices around each of the barriers and the recommendations were made to Administration, the Legislature, local government, and private business to find solutions. Some of the recommendations included supporting transit-oriented development, encouraging commercial and residential development to consider access to transportation infrastructure, assisting more students applying for federal aid to make certificates, and more. The Command Center looked at the way that the government is structured to handle workforce and economic development as well as data each agency collects was reviewed, discussed and combined into a data dashboard which is available at data.pa.gov. The Command Center also provided new opportunities for inter and intra-governmental collaboration. Some examples of collaboration include the Department of State and the Department of Military and Veterans Affairs working together to review active duty service skills learned as well as crosswalk towards licensure and/or potential secondary education obtained in collaboration with PDE. The PA Department of Human Services and the PA Chamber

were exploring business-driven expansion of child care services. Also, the PA Chamber and the Department of Corrections were working together to educate businesses on benefits of hiring reentrants. Mr. Reber noted that the work of the Command Center was not finished, their new mission was to assist with implementing recommendations. Also, as Deputy Secretary Jones had noted, Governor Wolf addressed many of the recommendations in his 2020-2021 proposed budget including new grant program for projects that reduce employment barriers and an increase in funding for worker training programs such as WEDnet PA. The Command Center is also already working on Phase II of the data dashboard and welcome feedback. Mr. Reber then invited other Command Center members to add their own thoughts. Mr. Bloomingdale noted that it has been a fascinating and rewarding experience to be appoint to both the Command Center and the Workforce Development Board. He noted that serving on the Command Center has been an eyeopener about all of the opportunities that are out there to enhance the workforce. Chairman Brown thanked Mr. Reber for his great work on the Command Center and noted that he was apprehensive at first but now he sees that it has benefits.

### 2020 WIOA Combined State Plan Submission

Chairman Brown transitioned to review of the 2020 WIOA Combined State Plan. He asked James Martini to review the comments that the PA WDB received concerning the State Plan. Mr. Martini remarked before he jumped into the State Plan, that the Board had voted on recommendations on data transparency around the workforce system and those metrics were included in the Command Center dashboard. Mr. Martini also commented that they had received comments at the last Board meeting outside of the official public comment period beginning and they incorporated those changes as well. Among them was a recommendation to include information about the demographic challenges facing certain industries. He then transitioned to summarizing the public comments. Ms. Hollister then asked if the suggestions from the last Youth Committee meeting were included. Ms. Turner noted that they are taking those suggestions into account but that they could look to the modification process in the future to make significant changes. Mr. Martini noted that the state is required to submit a modification every two years but that the plan can be edited at any point. He also remarked that within the actual federal WIOA Law, the passage of the plan is of the utmost supremacy in the requirements of the PA WDB. Chairman Brown asked if they adopted the plan at the meeting, would they still have time to review their modifications and make adjustments. Mr. Martini responded that they plan that they would approve at the meeting would go into effect and that they would be approved the plan contingent upon the State Board of Education's approval of the Perkins V Plan which occurs in March 2020. Mr. Martini remarked they would then have a ten-day window to incorporate that plan into the WIOA Combined State Plan and get it into the federal portal for them to review for 90 days. Chairman Brown asked if in the waiting period, other changes could be considered. Mr. Martini responded that it would require the Board to take another full quorum vote under the Sunshine Act. Chairman Brown asked if it would have to be a public hearing. Mr. Martini responded that it would. Ms. Hollister asked for clarification that they had review the youth goals before they had the change to have any changes on them. Mr. Martini says that it appears that that is what happened. Ms. Hollister asked if in the future, they could review them before. Mr. Martini responded that if there were any specific changes that needed to be made, there could be a motion to approve the plan with those changes. Ms. DiMatteo-Holsinger asked if it would have to happen at the meeting. Mr. Martini responded it could happen at the meeting as it was the Board's discretion. He noted that if the plan wasn't approved at the Board meeting, they would need to call another meeting and they would need a public phone line to do that under the provisions of the Sunshine Act. Chairman Brown asked the Youth Committee in the list of their recommended changes, if there were changes that were mission critical. Ms. Fulmore-Townsend responded that some of the changes were really about implementation and there were maybe two places were they felt really strongly. One of them was that summer employment was missing from 3.7 or 3.8 and the other was about language around what data points they would be using. Ms. Hollister remarked that she thought they were having a chance to change some of the language. Chairman Brown asked if the point about summer work was excluded or just not specifically mentioned. Ms. Fulmore-Townsend said it was not specifically mentioned. Mr. Martini noted that they had pulled up 3.7 on the screen and Ms. Fulmore-Townsend and Ms. Hollister noted that was the goal they were talking about. Ms. Fulmore-Townsend noted that that they wanted to change language in the opening of the section to acknowledge that young people have assets. Chairman Brown asked that they have a specific proposal. Ms. Hollister noted that they language she had proposed for the first paragraph in the last sentence where it says "for youth with barriers to employment", it would continue to say "early identification of the strengths and challenges and allow for better identification of supports that means smaller investment of time and resources than if supports were not identified until later in life". Ms. Hollister then asked if Ms. Fulmore-Townsend had anything different and Ms. Fulmore-Townsend said that she didn't. Deputy Secretary Jones then remarked that what she has seen previously work, that if the Board was agreeable to that and if they were clear on what the two changes were to make a friendly amendment and incorporate that into the final motion to approve the plan with those changes. Chairman Brown responded okay. Deputy Secretary Jones they said that she thought they should table it and then they could follow up with James with the exact language and then they could return to the topic and they could incorporate into the motion for the final approval. Chairman Brown asked if they just wanted the language change and adding summer work. Ms. Fulmore-Townsend said it would be for goal 3.7 for adding summer work. Chairman Brown asked if that covered the most important part of their concern. Ms. Fulmore-Townsend said that those were their two concerns related to the language of the plan. The other concerns were around the implementation and definitions. Chairman Brown asked that if they could get their words down, when they did the motion, they could go back to read them and include them in the minutes.

Mr. Martini then remarked that he would summarize the public comments the best that he could. The first comment came from Mr. Pennington who is an advocate in the OVR community and noted that a previous version of the State Plan had a specific OEO certification process which had been omitted in the plan so they added it back. The next two comments were from the Office of Vocational Rehabilitation and they were both technical corrections that they made to align the language of the OVR State Plan to make sure it was incorporated into the WIOA Combined State Plan. The next several comments came from the Alzheimer's Association on behalf of Ms. Ebersole. They asked to include the Department of Health into the interagency working group so that change was made. They also asked to include health care workforce as a core group to address in the career pathways and apprenticeship committee. He said they agreed with the recommendation and that they have representatives from the Department of Health working on the direct care worker challenges within the health care committee and career pathways. They did not make a change to the plan but noted that they agreed with it and were going to do that work. The next question was addressed by the Department of Human Services to include competency-based dementia training to all direct services, administrative, supervisory and other staff who are involved in the delivery of care for long-term facilities. They specifically called out the Long-Term Care Council Direct Care Worker Report. The DHS response noted they were very supportive of the blueprint for strengthening Pennsylvania's Direct Care Workforce and did not make a change to the plan but agreed with the

comment. The next several remarks were from Northwestern PA Job Connect on behalf of Jackie Hamilton. They suggest for goal 5.3 that training should either use technology or be provided geographically and they thanked them for the comment and noted that the goal states the training is being developed to be available online. They also commented that services should be based on quality rather than quantity. Mr. Martini said they agreed but no change was needed. They also talked about a need to engage additional stakeholders within improvements to CWDS. The state responded that they will always continue to engage relevant stakeholders in any discussions related to system development. Another comment was for all partner agencies to track where data sharing can be increased. They suggest that it should include sharing data with local areas and increasing CWDS access. The state responded that local workforce development staff can access CWDS and retrieve data through established report templates. They did not make any changes to the plan. Mr. Martini then said he would stick to the ones where they did make changes or ones that were more substantial. He remarked that the next several comments from Northwest PA were directed at PDE and involved changing language around GED to include high school equivalency testing so they made several changes throughout. Another change was that someone read the whole way through the plan and noted that there was an incorrect word on pg. 232. There were then several comments from Leading Age PA submitted by Beth Greenberg that were healthcare related and they answered them by saying they were being addressed by the Healthcare Workforce Ad Hoc committee. One specific recommendation was for nursing assistants to continue to appear on high priority occupation lists. Several comments came from Partner4Work, submitted by Earl Buford. The remarks revolved around aligning career pathways and apprenticeship with industry partnership programs. Another one was for a request for additional data sharing but the state responded that they were following all applicable regulations and laws and sharing what they could. For comment 37 on page 27, the response was that MOUs were being developed as request in the comment and they were adding additional language. Comment 38 on page 28 asked that they not track the number of new policies but rather the percentage of policies created that are data driven. Mr. Martini then remarked that comments 41 through 52 came from a group called Results for America and Mr. Martini encouraged the members to read through them as their big focus on evidence-based strategies and making sure grants are outcome focused. He noted that bringing their recommendations to the Board for consideration would be a good next step for those comments. Chairman Brown asked if Mr. Martini would get them to the various committees. Mr. Martini said he certainly would and that they were very well thought out and succinct comments. He then noted that they received comments from Philadelphia Works related to reentry programs and noted that the reentry committee would be addressing those. There was also a strong suggestion to better collaborate with the Reintegration of Ex-Offenders Grant programs. He continued that they there were a few comments from Pennsylvania Workforce Development Association. Mr. Martini said they agreed with all of those comments but felt that no changes were necessary except for comment 57 related to Memorandums of Understanding and ensuring that all of the partners across the systems were participating and contributing to the operation of the one-stop centers. Another comment came from a former employee of Labor and Industry that moved to the Department of Military and Veterans Affairs that said in addition to increasing training for front-line staff and Mr. Martini said they agreed with that. The last comment came from ABC of Pennsylvania from David Greineder and they pointed out that individuals shouldn't be punished for completing a pre-apprenticeship program and not going into a registered apprenticeship and pre-apprenticeships can be used as a career awareness activity and some people in the programs might decide that path is not for them.

Chairman Brown then opened the floor for additional comments. Ms. DiMatteo Holsinger asked how they stay responsible for the goals as she is not sure all of them make for good application. Mr. Martini responded that there was a couple of different reasons why an item would not be changed. One was that they tried to make sure the plan was solid for an entirety of the four years and for other suggestions it would be best to work it through the committee and have it voted on or addressed by the full Board. Chairman Brown asked if there was anything in the plan that would prohibit the Board from pursuing those ideas. Mr. Martini responded that there wasn't and that there were some recommendations where no changes were made that involved the recommendation or public comment being something that the state couldn't actually do. Chairman Brown then asked that the state isn't allowed to share information with everyone. Mr. Martini said that there were instances that they felt that plan addressed what the comment was. Chairman Brown asked if there were any other questions and there were none. He then asked Ms. Fulmore-Townsend what she would like added to the plan. She then noted that the Youth Committee was requesting changing the sentence beginning with "for youth with barriers to employment", to "for youth with barriers to employment, earlier identification of strengths and of those challenges can allow for remediation efforts often with a considerably smaller investment of time and resources than if those barriers remain unaddressed until later in life". Ms. Hollister then stated that she had something different. Her version was "in our youth with barriers to employment, early identification of those strengths and challenges allow for better identification of supports that means smaller investment of time and resources than if supports were not identified until later in life". Chairman Brown asked if that version worked for Ms. Fulmore-Townsend and she said it did. Chairman Brown then asked if anyone had a problem with the change. No one responded. Chairman Brown then asked for the second change. Ms. Fulmore-Townsend said that in goal 3.7, they were asking for the addition to be "employability skills through work-based learning opportunities, particularly through summer employment and STEM career pathways for in-school youth as a means of increasing student engagement and dropout prevention by engaging businesses". Chairman Brown if there was anybody not okay with the change. No one responded. Chairman Brown then asked if there were any public comments on the plan or if there were any public comments. There were none. Chairman Brown then sought a motion to approve the plan with the two additions/changes subject to the State Board of Education's approve of the Perkins V Plan.

**MOTION**: Mr. Nicholas moved to approve the plan. Mr. Yarnell seconded. The motion passed unanimously.

Chairman Brown then sought a motion to adjourn the meeting.

**MOTION**: Deputy Secretary Kilko moved to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Yarnell seconded.

The meeting ended at 1:57pm.